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IN THE MATTER OF 

Goodrum Fann CR314, LLC 

) 
) 
) 
) 

Docket No. CWA-07-2016-0060 

) 
) 
) 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-) 

ORDER 

Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.5(a)(l), facsimile/electronic filing of page 8 of the Consent 

Agreement/Final Order is authorized in this proceeding. 

Dated: D'i -o<d-2t>t(o 

Regional Administrator 



UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTIOf'.."2ft.!<ij~~t2 A~i 8· Q\-, 
REGION 7 

1120 l RENNER BOULEY ARD 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66219 

BEFORE THE ADMINISTRATOR 

IN THE MA TIER OF: ) 
) 
) 
) 

GOODRUM FARM CR3 l 4, LLC ) 
) 

Respondent ) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Proceedings Wlder Section 309(g) of the ) 
Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g) ) 

Docket No. CWA-07-2016-0060 

CONSENT AGREEMENT/ 
FINAL ORDER 

The United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 7 ("EPA") and Goodrum 
Farm CR314, LLC ("Respondent") have agreed to a settlement of the alleged violations set forth 
in this Consent Ab'Teement and Final Order ("C A/FO'"). Thus this action is simultaneously 
commenced and concluded pursuant to Rules 22.13(b) and 22. J 8(h)(2) of the Consolidated Rules 
of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties, Issuance of Compliance 
or Corrective Action Orders, and the Revocation, Termination or Suspension of Penni ts, 40 
C.F.R. Part 22 ("Consolidated Rules"). 

COMPLAINT 

Jurisdiction 

1. This is an administrative action for the assessment of civil penalties instituted 
pursuant to Section 309(g)(2)(B) of the Clean Water Act ("CWA"), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(2)(A), 
and in accordance with the Consolidated Rules. 

2. This CA/FO alleges that the Respondent discharged pollutants into waters of the 
United States in violation of Sections 301and404 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1311and1344. 
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Parties 

3. Complainant. by delegation from the Administrator of EPA to the Regional 
Administrator, EPA, Region 7. and re-delegation is the Director of Region Ts Water. Wctl<1nds 
and Pesticides Dh ision. 

4. Respondent is Goodrum Farm CR3 I 4, LLC (''Respondent"'). 

Statutorv and Regulator.' Framework 

5. Arm~ Corps of Engineers (hereinafter "Corps"). for any discharge of .. dredged or 
fill material'' into the .. na\ igabk \\aters .. of the United States. 

6. Section 502(7) of the CWA. 33 U.S.C. * 1362(7). defines "navigable \\atcrs." in 
part, as the "waters of the United States:· 

7. At the time of the \·iolations alleged herein. -HJ C.F.R. s 232.2 and 33 C.F.R. * 
328.3 defined "waters or the \ lnitcd States" to im:lude inter alia: (i) all \Ullcrs \\ hich are 
currently. used. \\ere used in the past. or may be ~usceptibk to use in interstale or foreign 
commerce: (ii) all interstate waters: (iii) tributaries Lo such \\ aters: and Ov) wetlands adjacent to 
such waters or their tributaries. 

8. 40 C.F.R. § 232.2 and 33 C.F.R * 328.J(b) define ··wetlands" as .. ftlhose area~ that 
are inundated or saturated by surface or ground\\ater al a frequency and duration sufficient to 
support, and that under normal circumstance~ do support, a prevalence of vegetation typically 
adapted for life in saturated conditions:· 

9. 40 C.F.R. § 232.2 defines "discharge of Ii I I material'· to include the "placement of 
fill. including site-development fills for commercial <md other uses.'· 

I 0. 40 C.F.R. * 232.2 defines .. di scharge of dredged material'· to include "any addition. 
including redeposit other than incidental feedhad .. of dredged material, including excavated 
material. into waters of the United States. \\ hich is incidental to any activity. including 
mechanized land clearing ... or other cxc<I\ ation:· 

11. 40 C.F.R. § 232.2 defines .. lilt material .. as any pollutant that "replaces portions of 
the ·waters of the l lnited States· \\ ith dr) land or\\ hi ch changes the bottom ele\ at ion of a \\ ater 
bod) for any purpose ... 

12. 40 C.f· .R. § 232.2 de lines .. dredged material'' as .. material that i!> c:-;carnted or 

dredged from waters of the ll nited States:· 
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13. Section 309(a) nr the CW A. 33 U .S.C. § 13 19(.a), authorizes the issuance of an 
order against an) person who violates Section 301 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311. requiring such 
person to comply. 

Factual Backl!round 

14. Respondent is a .. person .. \\ithin the meaning of Sedion 502(5) of the C\\'A. 33 
U.S.C. § 1362(5). 

15. At all times relevant to this udion, Respondent owned, operated, or otherwise 
controlled a 75 acre parcel of property located in Section 20. Tlm nship 2-i North. lfonge 6 East. 
in Butler County, Missouri (hereinafter .. the Site .. ). 

16. On July 3, 20 I~, the Corps. Little Rock District. receiwcl an anonymous complaint 
informing of wetlands being ckared \\ ith a bulldozer. 

17. On July 16. 201-L the Corps inspected the Site anJ conlinned that Respondent 
and/or persons acting on their behalf. authoriLed and 'or initiated the mi:chani/ed land clearing 
and grading of wooded wetlands that resulted in thi: discharge of dredged aml!or fill material into 
approximately 9.46 acres of \\ooded \\etlanJs (hi:reinafter .. impacted \\etlands .. ) adjacent to 
Craven Ditch. 

18. Crawn Ditch, a pen:nnial tributm). tlo\\ s into Main Ditch. an interstmc water. 
which then !lows into thi: Black Ri\'er, a traditional nm igublc water. 

19. The impacted \\'dlands providcJ importalll functions, including, illfa alia. nutrient 
recycling, retention and attenuation of llood waters. sediment trapping, export of organic mailer. 
and export of food resources. These wetlands had and continue lO have a significant nexus to. and 
significantly affect. the chemical, physical and/or hiological integrity or downstream traJitional 
navigable waters, including the Black River. 

20. On September 8, 2014, the Corps issueJ a Cease and Desist order 10 Re~pondent. 

21. The dredged and/or till material dt:posited or discharged b~ Respondent's acfr i1ies 
into wetlands adjacent to Cnncn Ditch are •·pollutants .. within the meaning of Section 50216) of 
the CW A, 33 U .S.C. § 1362( 6 ). 

2::!. The earth moving equipment referenced above constitutes a .. poim source .. '' ithin 
the meaning of Section 502( 14) of the C:WA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362( 14). 
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23. fhe discharge or deposition of dredged and/or lill material into wetlands adjacent to 
Crm en Ditch constitutes the .. discharge of a pollutant .. " ithin the meaning llf Section 50 I (I 2) of 
the CWA. 33 U.S.C. § 1362( 12). 

24. Craven Ditch and its adjacent \\et lands arc ··water!-. of the l 'nitcd Stales··" ithin the 
meaning of Section 502( 7) of the C\\ J\ . . B lJ .S.C. ~ 1362(7). and the regulations promulgated 
thereunder. 

?°' Respondent did not obtain a permit i!.sucd pursuant to Section 404 of the CW A. 33 
U.S.C. § 1344. prior to the performance of the \\ork. described herein, nor did Respondent 
perform the work described herein under any prior permit issued pursuant to Section 404 of the 
CWA. 33 U.S.C. § 1344. 

CONSENT AGREEMENT 

26. Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations of this CA/FO and agrees not to 
contest EPA·!> jurisdiction in this proceeding or an) subsequent proceeding to enforce the term~ 
of the Final Order. 

27. Respondent neither admits nor denies the factual alll.!gations contained in this 
CAIFO. 

28. Respondent \\aives any right lD contest the allegations and its right to appeal the 
proposed Final Order accompan) ing this Consent Agreement. 

29. Respondent and Complainant each agree to bear their o\\ n costs and attorne) · s l~es. 

30. Nothing contained in the Final Order shall alter or othern ist· affect Respondent's 
obligations lo comply with all applicable federal. ~late. and local en\'ironmental statutes and 
regulations and applicable permits. 

31. Respondent certifies that it is full) authorized to enter the terms and condition" or 
this CA/FO and to execute and legally bind Respondent to it. 

32. Respondent certifies by the signing of this C A/FO thaL to the best of its kno\\ ledge. 
Respondent is in compliance with all requirements of Sections 301 and 404 of the CWA. 

33. rhc cncct of settlt:ment is conditional upon the accuraC) of the Re:-.pondcnt" s 
repri:scntations to EPA. as memorialized in paragraph 32 abo\e. of this CA'FO. 

34. Respondent consents to the is~uancc of the Final Ordl.!r anJ consent!:> to the pa) ment 
of a civil pcnalt) in the amount of $15,000. 
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35. Payment of the entire civil penalty shall resolve all civil and administrative claims 
of the United States alleged in the Findings of Violations. 

Reservation of Rights 

36. EPA reserves the right to enforce the terms of this CA/FO by initiating a judicial or 
administrative action pursuant to Section 309 of the CW A, 33 U.S.C. § 1319. 

37. With respect to matters not addressed in this CA/FO, described in paragraph 30 
above, EPA reserves the right to take any enforcement action pursuant to the CWA, or any other 
available legal authority, including without limitation. the right to seek injunctive reliet: 
monetary penalties and punitive damages. 

PENALTY 

JT IS HEREBY AGREED BY THE PARTIES, and pursuant to Section 309(g) of the 
CWA, 33 U.S.C. § I 3 l 9(g), it is ORDERED that: 

38. Respondent shall pay a civil penalty of Fifteen Thousand dollars ($15,000). The 
penalty shall be paid in full within thirty (30) days following receipt hy Respondent of a fully 
executed copy of this CA/FO. Respondent shall pay the penalty by certified or cashier's check 
payable to .. Treasurer, United States of America·• and shall deliver it, with a transmittal that 
identities the case name and docket number to: 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Fines and Penalties 
Cinc.innati Finance Center 
PO Box 979077 
St. Louis, Missouri 63197-9000. 

The check must also be annotated with the docket number and with the name of the case. 
Copies of the transmittal letter and the check shall be simultaneously sent to: 

and 

Kathy Robinson 
Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S . .Environmental Protection Agency - Region 7 
1120 I Renner Boulevard 
Lenexa. Kansas 66219 

Chris Muehlberger 
Office of Regional Counsel 
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U.S. Environmental Protection Agency - Region 7 
11201 Renner Boulevard 
Lenexa, Kansas 66219. 

Should the civil penalty not be paid as provided above. interest \\.'ill be assessed at the 
annual rate established by the Secretary of the Treasury pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717. The 
interest wiH be assessed on the overdue amount from the due date through the date of pay1nent. 

39. No portion ofthe civil penalty or interest paid by Respondent pursuant to the 
requirements of this CA/FO shall be claimed by Respondent a'i a deduction for federal. state, or 
local income tax purposes. 

Parties Bound 

40. This Final Order shall apply to and be binding upon the Respondent, its agents, 
successors, and a<;signs. Respondent shall ensure that any directors. officers, employees, 
contractors, consultants, firms or other persons or entities acting under or for it with respect to 
matters included herein comply with the terms of this CA/FO. 

Effective Date 

41. This Final Order shall become effective upon filing pursuant to 40 C.F.R. 
§ 22.31(b). All time periods herein shall be calculated therefrom unless otherwist: provided in 
this Final Order. 
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COMPLAINANT: 
U.S. ENVIRONf\..1ENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

ctor 
Water, Wetlands and Pesticides Division 

~~I 
Chris Muehlberger ~ Date 
Assistant Regional Counsel 
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RESPONDENT: 

;;-/~fZ'{ 111 a{,--aiR.:wi.:\ 
Printed Name 

1J\e i'I\ b.-£ 1 { 6 - /S -/ (p 
Title Date 
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FINAL ORDER 

Pursuant to Section 309(g) of the CW A, 33 U.S.C. § 13 l 9(g), and the Consolidated Rules of 
Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation, Termination or 
Suspension of Permits, 40 C.F.R. Part 22, the foregoing Consent Agreement resolving this matter is 
hereby ratified and incorporated by reference into this Final Order. 

The Respondent is ORDERED to comply with all of the terms of the Consent Agreement. In 
accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.3l(b), the effective date of the foregoing Consent Agreement and this 
Final Order is the date on which this Final Order is filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

~~ 
MarkHague -~ 
Regional Administrator 

Date 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing Order was sent this day in the 
following manner to the addressees: 

Copy emailed to Attorney for Complainant: 

muehlberger.christopher@epa.gov 

Copy by First Class Mail to Respondent: 

Terry Goodrum 

Registered Agent for Goodrum Farm CR314, LLC 

815 Shipwatch Drive 

Imperial, Missouri 63052 

\ 

Dated: Q I { d-/ f {p ~~~ 
Kath)IRObi011 
Hearing Clerk, Region 7 


